
OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION
MEETING FOR SEPTEMBER 26,2022

Jtt*tifdJrhE

Present: Council President Nancy Grimes, Councilor Bridget Brooks, Councilor Maria Reyes,
Councilor Valerie Pratt, Councilor Cyndy Hillier, Councilor Christen Sacco

Absent: Mayor Frank Bubenik

Council President Grimes called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m

1. Republic Servrces Update

Management Analyst Lindsay Marshall and Republic Services Municipal Relationship Manager
KJ Lewis presented an update on the Recycle + program and the Residential Organics program
Manager Lewis spoke to the residential organics program, stating it is not currently in Tualatin
but can be if requested by the Council. She stated it is a low cost program, $0.60-0.75 per
month, that composts the material. Manager Lewis provided an update on the commercial
organics program stating that 29 businesses are currently participating. She stated Recycle+ is
a new program in Washington County that offers recycling of new items that could not be
recycled before including stretchy plastic film, clear plastic clamshell containers, textiles, and
fluorescent light bulbs. Manager Lewis stated there is a base charge for the program that offers
two pick-up opportunities monthly. She stated the monthly base rate is $2.50 and has a pickup
rate of $9.25. Manager Lewis reminded citizens about the recycling depot that is located in
Wilsonville that accepts cardboard, electronic waste, glass bottles, metal, standard recyclables,
and polystyrene. She stated Republic will be back in November with a rate adjustment from
Metro that is estimated at7o/o.

Council President Grimes asked if the rate increase for this type of recycling would be passed to
every customer or just those using it. Manager Lewis stated the base rate for composting would
be passed along to everyone but the service fees for Recycle+ would only apply to those using
it.

Council President Grimes asked about the education campaign that will go along with the
program. Analyst Marshall stated there would be a large education campaign that would also
include materials from the county.

Councilor Hillier asked what the change in process would be for those who put their organics in
their yard debris bins already. Republic Services Operations Manager Matt Ketchem stated
there would be no change, but noted the composting process is more efficient when organics
are placed in your yard debris bin.

Councilor Pratt asked if you can schedule pickups for the Recycle+ online. Manager Lewis
stated there is not an online portal at this time to schedule a pickup.

Councilor Pratt asked if there is a way to quantify how much organics are being picked up so
they can be reported on. Manager Lewis stated they track the amounts and can report back on
them.

#



Councilor Reyes asked if the opt out is for the city as a whole. Manager Lewis stated the
organics program is a citywide program and would be charged the base rate. She stated the
Recycle+ program is an opt-in or out program on an individual basis.

Councilor Reyes asked how apartment complexes would handle all these recycling programs.
Manager Lewis stated Recycle+ is not offered at multi-family complexes but there are plans to in
the future.

Councilor Brooks stated she did a site visit of the transfer station and she encouraged others to
as well as it is a very educational and informative experience. She asked what materials can be
recycled there. Manager Lewis stated all items are listed on their website.

Councilor Brooks asked how many trucks of compacted garbage goes to the landfill. Manager
Lewis stated 480 tons of garbage goes to the dump from different jurisdictions in the area.

Councilor Brooks asked how charges are applied for businesses. Manager Lewis stated the
costs are amortized amongst the businesses.

Councilor Sacco asked about the methane difference between the food waste going in the
garbage vs. the yard debris. Manager Lewis explained that when food is currently thrown away it
gets put into different cells and they extract the R&G from the landfill and the methane is then
used to fuel homes. She stated one option isn't better than the other.

Councilor Sacco asked since there is no process change what are the extra funds going
towards. Manager Lewis stated it goes to drivers, admin costs, and heavier load costs.

Council President Grimes asked about counter top food composting containers. Manager Lewis
stated they are an option but there would be additional costs to provide them.

Councilor Brooks asked about the Master Recycling Program. Manager Lewis stated it is ran by
Washington County.

Councilor Hillier asked what the impact is for families that receive heat for their homes from the
methane from the landfill. Manager Ketchem stated the landfill will continue to produce an
abundance of methane over the next 30 years.

Council consensus was reached to move fonnrard with exploring the programs at a future
Council meeting.

2. Council Meeting Agenda Review.

Councilor Hillier stated she attended the DEI Committee Working Group meeting for the City.
She stated the group will be at Council on November 14th to bring fonruard their findings.

Councilor Pratt stated she attended the C4 Metro meeting, the Mid-West CIO meeting, the
Chamber meeting, and the l-205 Diversion Committee meeting.

Councilor Reyes stated the Borland Free Clinic will be having their Sth Annual Gala on October
22nd she encouraged people to attend as it is a fundraiser for them.

Councilor Brooks stated she worked with Parks staff on a backyard habit using grant funds that
Tualatin Sustainability Network received. She stated she attended the Regional Water





Consortium meeting, the Historical Society meeting, the League of Oregon Cities Woman
Caucus meeting, and the Stafford Family Festival.

Councilor Sacco stated she attended the Equity Group Planning meeting and the l-205
Diversion Sub-Committee meeting. She stated stickers and yard signs are now available for the
Tualatin Parks Bond to help show your support.

Adjournment

Council President Grimes adjourned the meeting at 6:55 p.m

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

/ Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

1r^ / Frank Bubenik, Mayor



OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE TUALATIN CITY COUNCIL MEETING FOR
SEPTEMBER 26, 2022

Jif{ drr.rlit;F

Present: Council President Nancy Grimes, Councilor Bridget Brooks, Councilor Maria Reyes,
Councilor Valerie Pratt, Councilor Cyndy Hillier, Councilor Christen Sacco

Absent: Mayor Frank Bubenik

Callto Order

Council President Grimes called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Pledge of Allegiance

Announcements

1. Public Health Announcement

Councilor Brooks reminded citizens about the updated COVID vaccines that are available and
encouraged them to get theirs.

2. New Employee lntroduction- Engineer Associate Bryce Donovan

City Engineer Mike McCarthy introduced Engineering Associate Bryce Donovan. The council
welcomed him.

Public Comment

None.

Consent Agenda

Motion to adopt the consent agenda made by Councilor Pratt, Seconded by Councilor Brooks.
Voting Yea: Council President Grimes, Councilor Brooks, Councilor Reyes, Councilor Pratt,
Councilor Hillier, Councilor Sacco
MOTION PASSED

1. Consideration of Approval of the Work Session and Regular Meeting Minutes of August 22,
2022 and September 12, 2022.

2. Consideration of Resolution No. 5645-22 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract
with Diversified Abilities, lnc. for Janitorial Services

Special Reports

1. Summer Program Recap and Fall Preview

Recreation Supervisor Julie Ludemann and Library Public Services Supervisor Sarah
Jesudason presented the summer program recap and fall program preview. Supervisor

#





Jesudason stated this summer the Library had 2,179 readers participate in the Summer Reading
program. She stated in addition to that program the Library hosted 160 programs for all age
groups and were a summer lunch site for school age children. Supervisor Ludemann stated Viva
Tualatin held its 3'd annual event that hosted 5 performances, 20 community booths, and
several craft booths for kids. She stated summer camps were held and hosted over 400 kids
grades 1-6 and 48 teens in grades 7-10. Supervisor Ludemann stated Concerts in the Parks
resumed this year and there were four Friday night concerts and two lunchtime concert with over
5,000 attendees. Supervisor Jesudason stated they expanded their Library Summer Teen
program to include tweens which consisted of 34 youths serving 977 volunteer hours. She
stated additional volunteer events at the library included help in the MakerSpace and Library
Shelvers. Supervisor Ludemann stated summer volunteer programs for the parks department
included TEAM Tualatin, corporate volunteers, Eagle Scout projects, and DIY volunteers. She
stated volunteer opportunities this fall include the Hug a Tree and Put Down Roots events.
Supervisor Jesudason stated the Police Department hosted the GREAT Camp this year for 125
youth in grades 6-9. Supervisor Ludemann stated the Juanita Pohl Center hosted 3,475
attendees for their summer programs that included fitness, enrichment, travel, and wellness
activities. She thanked this summers recreation partners including Willowbrook Arts Camp,
Skyhawks Sports Camp, Skate Like A Girl, Tualatin Youth Sports Leagues, and the Tualatin
Historical Society.

Supervisor Jesudason shared a fall preview for the library stating story times are back in the
building, all things pumpkin in October, and music and dinosaurs in November. Supervisor
Ludemann shared the fall preview for the Juanita Pohl Center stating the Veterans Recognition
Breakfast will be returning in November, Active Aging Week in October, and many other events
with the Earthwise Crew. She stated the West Coast Giant Pumpkin Regatta will be held on
October 16th with the Pumpkins and Pints Weigh-off being held on October 1Sth.

Council President Grimes congratulated staff on another year of successful summer events.

Councilor Brooks asked what kind of skating the Skate Like A Girl program offers. Supervisor
Ludemann stated they teach skateboarding.

Councilor Brooks asked who drew this year's Pumpkin Regatta Flyer. Supervisor Ludemann
stated Tualatin High School Teacher Brenna White drew the flyer. She stated she will be at the
Regatta selling artwork.

Councilor Pratt asked if the Holiday Lights Parade will be happening. Supervisor Ludemann
stated it will be happening this year.

Councilor Sacco stated she is so impressed with the work that staff does with these events. She
plugged the Parks Bond to help elevate the parks and access in the future to make these events
even greater.

Council President Grimes asked if people can still register to be a pumpkin captain at the
Regatta. Supervisor Ludemann stated the public lottery has already closed for the race.

General Business

1. Consideration of Recommendations from the Council Committee on Advisory Appointments





Councilor Reyes introduced the committee. Councilor Pratt shared the committee
recommendations for the Architectural Review Board and the Library Advisory Committee
Councilor Brooks shared the committee recommendations for the Tualatin Planning
Commission.

Motion to accept the recommendations made by Councilor Brooks, seconded by Councilor
Sacco.
Voting Yea: Council President Grimes, Councilor Brooks, Councilor Reyes, Councilor Pratt,
Councilor Hillier, Councilor Sacco
MOTION PASSED

Council Comm unications

Councilor Hillier stated Happy Rashashana to our Jewish Neighbors.

Councilor Pratt announced the Rubber Duck Race that helps support the Tualatin Police
Foundation. She stated you can buy tickets at the Tualatin Police Foundation website.

Councilor Brooks reminded residents about the Makerspace and the Library of Things at the
Library as they are an amazing opportunity. She reminded citizens about the upcoming Book Club
and Forest Bathing events at the Juanita Pohl Center. Councilor Brooks stated there will be a
Backyard Habitat event and Litter Blitz in November.

Councilor Reyes invited residents to attend the Tualatino's event being held this Wednesday at
6pm at the Library. She shared information on the Borland Free Clinic upcoming Gala.

Adjournment

Council President Grimes adjourned the meeting at 7:39 p.m

Sherilyn Lombos, City Manager

/ Nicole Morris, Recording Secretary

lFrank Bubenik, Mayor


